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Since establishment, NH Ceramics Ltd, through its
wholly-owned operating subsidiary of 40-year old,
Nam Huat Tiling and Panelling Co Pte Ltd, continues to stock,
supply and distribute an extensive range of ceramic and marble
tile products to public and private sector projects, renovation
contractors and homeowners.  Our reputation as a ceramic
tile specialist is the result of uncompromising product quality
and superb professional service that we provide.

Enhanced by technological innovations, our online virtual reality
allows easy and speedy global accesses to show-
room displays and technical specifications.  A three-dimensional
simulation model enables ‘Drag & Drop mock-ups’ from its
database.

Through our interior design & renovator arm, Living Elements
Pte. Ltd., NH Ceramics provide value-added premier home
renovations to discerning customers.

NH Ceramics has always been focused to fulfill customer
satisfaction.  We attribute our success to the unwavering
support of and close collaboration with world-renowned
manufacturers and the professionalism and commitment of
our staff.

Backed with an outstanding track record, NH Ceramics
continues to seek new opportunities and prospects in
the industry.

“beautiful homes begin with
NH Ceramics”

Hougang Showroom

Kembangan Showroom

Head Office - Tuas



2Chairman’s Statement and
Operations Review

Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye
Executive Chairman and Managing Director

General Industry Conditions
The financial year ended 30 June 2003 continued to be a difficult
year for the Building Finishes Industry as a whole, and
correspondingly for NH Ceramics Ltd (“the Group”).

The demand for ceramic and marble tile products is directly
linked to general construction activities which determines the
demand levels in the private and public project sectors, and
the general economic climate in the country, which determines
the economic well-being of the population at large and drives
the pace of home renovations and upgrading, providing retail
revenue.  We continued to experience significant declines in
demand in all segments of the market in FY2003.

There were not that many new major private commercial and
residential developments in FY2003.  Other than some HDB
IUPs (Interim Upgrading programme) and LUPs (Lifts Upgrading
programmes), new HDB residential developments continued
to be curtailed, in view of surplus completed units.  The
Government’s major rebuilding and upgrading programme for
schools, initiated in the late 1990s, has also been completed.

The economic environment for the past year was worse off
than in FY2002, being continually marked by high levels of
retrenchment, restructuring in the employment market and
general wage freezes and restraints.  This reinforced the poor
consumer sentiment resulting in drastic declines in home
renovations and refurbishing expenditures.

The poor financial health of many Main Contractors, which
included even big and established names, took its toll as many
ended under judicial management with uncompleted projects
and unpaid sub-contractors and suppliers.

The risk of defaults on payments in the Construction Industry
remained extremely high.

Financial Performance
The main operating subsidiary of the Group is Nam Huat Tiling
& Panelling Co Pte Ltd (“NHTP”).  Our activities remain
unchanged as a major supplier, stockist and distributor of
ceramic and marble tile products and other building finishing
materials to public and private sector projects and retailing to
renovation contractors and homeowners.

The Group, in anticipation of the worsening market conditions,
intensified its already tight project management controls in
fulfillment of existing contracts, and taking on new contracts
with extreme caution.  This was necessary to avoid unprofitable
contracts, collection problems and more importantly, to avoid
getting into risky and controversial contractual consequences

whereby counter-claims would be more damaging than mere
uncollected debts.

The Group turnover for FY2003 was $22.11 million, which
saw a decrease of 28.3% ($8.71 million) from the $30.82 million
recorded in FY2002.

During the financial year, the Group wholly acquired Living
Elements Pte Ltd (“LEPL”), an interior design & renovator firm,
broadening the reach of the Group within the domestic Home
Renovation business and initiating another revenue base of the
Group.  LEPL contributed a turnover of only $0.37 million for
FY2003.  This was on account of a priority post-acquisition
programme to uplift, strengthen and enhance the operational
capabilities of LEPL before the launch of the new entity.

As the decrease in revenue could not be adequately offset
against reduction in operating expenses for the year, the Group
incurred a loss after tax of $1.91 million for FY2003.  This is
against a net profit after tax of $0.45 million recorded in FY2002.

Despite this, the Group took upon the opportunities to
continually strengthen and position ourselves within the Building
Finishes Industry.  This strategy has enabled the Group to tap
a bigger market share and establish a stronger rapport and
presence with project developers, architects, designers,
contractors and homeowners.

More importantly, FY2003 marks a period of intensive efforts
and investments by the Group, in the preparations and
development of new engines of growth to expand and diversify
its core revenue bases.
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Tuas Showroom

The Board remains optimistic and excited on the Group’s
business developments and remained focused on strengthening
our internal structure and expanding and enhancing our
external revenue bases, despite current market weaknesses.
Our efforts and developments are targeted at pro-actively
consolidating in weathering the recession, and enhance
profitability and returns on shareholders’ funds in the medium
and longer term, preparing for a recovery that is not so
far away.

The Board does not intend to recommend a final dividend, as
an interim dividend of 0.3 cents per ordinary share, less 22.0
per cent tax, had been distributed to thank our share-
holders who continue to support the Group despite the poor
economic environment.

The Board wishes to thank the management and staff for their
efforts in overcoming the challenges and urge them to continue
the Group’s steadfast drive towards the fruits of our labour.

Review of the Performance of the Company
and its Principal Subsidiary
Turnover of the Group for the first half of FY2003, ended
31st December 2002, was $12.54 million.  This was a decrease
of 23.5% from the $16.39 million for the corresponding period
in FY2002 ended 31st December 2001.  Turnover of the Group
for the second half of FY2003, ended 30th June 2003, was
$9.57 million.  This was a decrease of 33.7% from the $14.43
million for the corresponding period in FY2002 ended 30th
June 2002.

Project Division
In the Project Segment, the Group maintained tight
management of projects, materials, manpower deployment,
payments and receivables.  The ranges and levels of ready
stocks of the Group in our Tuas facility, continued to provide
added advantages for the Group to secure a bigger share of
the shrinking project market.  This is especially evident in the
Private Sector, which recorded only a marginal decline in
turnover, despite the slower pace of new residential
development during the financial year.  Total Project turnover,
however, declined by 32.1% ($7.96 million), to $16.81 million
in FY2003 from $24.77 million in FY2002.

The Group’s project order book, as at 30th June 2003, stands
at $6.91 million.  This comprises 18 private sector and 28
public sector projects.  This is in comparison to the order
book at 30th June 2002, at the end of the previous financial
year, of $8.61 million, which comprised 13 private and 38
public sector projects.

Retail Division
The Retail Segment recorded a 18.7% ($1.13 million) decline
in turnover, to $4.92 million in FY2003 from $6.05 million
in FY2002, as home renovations are generally held back or
down-scaled.

Despite the decline in demand in this segment, the Group
was able to retain competitiveness of our products with
continued discounts and improved terms from overseas
manufacturers and Principals, with whom the Group had
established strong commercial relationships and coordination
in marketing activities.

Kembangan Showroom

                                        Jun 2003                Jun 2002

Turnover S$’000 % S$’000 %

Project Segment

Public Sector 9,652 43.6 17,595 57.1

Private Sector 7,160 32.4 7,178 23.3

Retail Segment 4,922 22.3 6,050 19.6

Interior Design 375 1.7 n/a n/a
Renovation

22,109 100.0 30,823 100.0
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Kembangan Showroom

The Retail Division recorded a loss for the financial year,
resulting mainly from i) decrease in Retail turnover, ii) high
inventory carrying costs, iii) high retail manpower costs, and
iv) high depreciation charges for the Showrooms.

Showrooms
The Group enhanced the services and products available at
our 3-Showroom network.  During FY2003, the Group
collaborated with an established sanitary-ware importer to
include bathroom sanitary-wares at our Showrooms, as
complementary products to bathroom tiles and marbles for
one-stop conveniences of customers.

Our Showrooms are located at:
a) Kembangan Showroom: a 410 sqm freehold shop at

Kembangan Court, which is within a short distance from
the Kembangan MRT station.  This Showroom services
all customers including architects, developers, contractors
and homeowners.

b) Hougang Showcase: a 166 sqm HDB double-storey shop-
house at popular Hougang Central, which is adjacent to
the Kovan MRT station on the new North East MRT Line.
Renovations are on-going to house the full range of the
Group’s products, making this Showcase comparable to
the Main Showroom at Kembangan.  This coincides well
with the commencement of operations of the North East
MRT line, which its strategic location is expected to
enhance retail sales at this branch.

c) Tuas Showroom: located at our 18,600 sqm Head Office
complex at Tuas to service renovation contractors and
homeowners from the western part of Singapore.  This
is open, 9am-5pm on Mondays-Fridays, and 9am-2pm
on Saturdays.

The Hougang and Kembangan Showrooms are open, 9am-7pm
on Mondays-Saturdays, and 11am-4pm on Sundays and
Public Holidays.

This network of Showrooms is expected to enhance the
earnings from the Retail Segment in due course, although
current market sentiments may not reflect this potential.

NH-Authorised Retailers (Renovation
Contractors)
During the financial year, the Group took further measures to
review our business relationships and focused on reputable
and professional renovation contractors.  This enabled the
Group to minimise credit risks and losses from bad debts, and

further strengthen our cooperation with established reputable
retailers in the sector.

Interior Design / Renovation Segment
LEPL has not marketed its services in home renovations,
pending post-acquisition organisational and operational
reviews.  The revenues recorded are from some
recommended customers.

Operating Costs
Overhead expenses decreased by $1.00 million (11.9%) to $7.37
million in FY2003 from $8.37 million in FY2002.

Decreases in operating expenses were mainly from reductions
as follows:
i) $0.13 million in Directors’ remuneration, to $0.86 million

in FY2003 from $0.99 million in FY2002, resulting from
a voluntary reduction in salaries and waiver of bonus by
the Directors of the Group;

ii) $0.19 million in Staff Salaries to $2.11 million in FY2003
from $2.30 million in FY2002, arising from a general wage
cut within the Group;

iii) $0.07 million in Foreign Workers’ wages and levies to
$0.09 million in FY2003 from $0.16 million in FY2002,
arising from the expiry of permits and repatriation of
workers;

iv) $0.12 million in bank charges and interest costs, to $0.64
million in FY2003 from $0.76 million in FY2002, resulting
from favourable rates granted by all the three Principal
Bankers of the Group;
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v) $0.39 million in advertising & promotion expenses, to
$0.31 million in FY2003 from $0.70 million in FY2002;

vi) $0.06 million in insurance premiums to $0.17 million in
FY2003 from $0.23 million in FY2002, arising from
termination of credit insurance on accounts receivables;

vii) $0.06 million in Bad Debts to $0.18 million in FY2003
from $0.24 million in FY2002;

viii) $0.12 million in staff welfare expenses, CPF contributions
and repairs & maintenance, to $0.59 million in FY2003
from $0.71 million in FY2002.

Increases in operating expenses were mainly from:
i) $0.10 million in expensing the Goodwill incurred in the

acquisition of subsidiary LEPL in FY2003;
ii) $0.04 million in depreciation of fixed assets, to $1.00

million in FY2003 from $0.96 million in FY2002, resulting
from the depreciation of the fixed assets of LEPL.

Accounts Receivable & Bad Debts
A significant industry risk is that of payment defaults.

Over the years, the Group had developed and instituted
preventive and protective measures in our daily sales,
operation and management systems to keep bad debts within
reasonable limits.  These had included taking up insurance
against non-payment of specific account receivables. However,
this insurance service was terminated in Feb 2003, as the
insurance agency subsequently discontinued this product from
the market.  Despite this insurance discontinuation, the
Directors believe the extensive credit policies and intensive

control procedures adopted by the Group will significantly
address the risk-exposure of the Group.

The Group’s risk management practices restricted Bad Debts
to $0.18 million or 0.8 per cent of turnover ($22.11 million)
in FY2003, as against $0.24 million or a similar 0.8 per cent of
turnover ($30.82 million) in FY2002.  The Directors are of
the opinion that the Group’s loss from collection defaults, as
a percentage of turnover, continue to be among the lowest in
the Industry in Singapore.

Whilst maintaining tight credit controls, the Group continually
reviews and proactively tailors measures so as not to lose
sales opportunities or cause offence to customers.

Other Income & Loss
In FY2003, the Group registered a foreign exchange gain of
$0.19 million compared with a $0.27 million gain in FY2002.
This was the result of the currency hedging policy adopted by
the Group to protect against volatile currency exchange
fluctuations.  This policy was necessary as the time lag, between
the securing of a project supply contract with fixed prices in
local Dollars and the import of the materials in foreign
currencies to fulfill the contract, may be as long as 6 to
15 months.

During the financial year, the Group incurred a loss of $0.20
million on marketable securities held as investments arising
from the general decline of quoted securities on the Singapore
Exchange (“SGX”).  This was against a loss of $0.05 million in
FY2002.  The Group places a $0.50 million limit on total
investments on marketable securities listed on SGX-ST at
any given time, but does not actively trade in or make such
share investments.

Contributions of Tile Cutting &
Profiling Capabilities
The Group operates two full tile cutting / profiling lines and a
smaller line for cutting of tile samples.  Continuing upgrades
were made to enhance the complexity of profiling works in
FY2003.  In view of the depressed market, plans to launch the
service to other tile importers were withheld, as the lines
continued to focus on in-house work in contribution to the
Group’s overall efficiency and competitiveness in bidding
for projects.

Cost savings for FY2003 amounted to approximately $0.16
million compared to $0.28 million in FY2002.

Tuas Showroom
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Tuas Showroom

NH-Marble Automated Selection Line
(“NH-MASLine”)
Developmental work progressed to invitation for Tender for
the Full System construction of the NH-MASLline.  However,
no award was made from the tender evaluation on account of
consequential findings necessitating further developmental of
operational modules.  The Directors took the opportunity to
engage a professional consultancy firm to formalise the
Business Plan by the Group for the NH-MASLine.  The Business
Plan consultancy cost is supported by SPRING Singapore
on a 50% grant from the Local Enterprises Technical
Assistance Scheme.

Developmental work on the Full System, including Patent
registration, marketing research and preparatory works are
expected to be finalised in FY2004.

Launch of New Business Initiatives in FY2004
“Living Elements” - Home Interior Design &
Renovation Business
Acquired in Feb 2003, LEPL is in the final stages of post-
acquisition reorganisation and systems development to enhance
its operational capabilities.  These included expansion and
infusion of selected interior design and technical expertise,
and incorporating comprehensive documentary and
operational systems.

LEPL will be housed and launched from a new industrial premise
at #01-10 E-Centre@Redhill at Jalan Bukit Merah, purchased
by the Group in September 2003 for $1.34 million.

Its mission statement is to initiate and offer high standards in
the provision of home interior design and renovation, conducted
with professionalism and integrity in keeping with the standards
expected of the NH Ceramics Brand.

Its competitive advantage lies in the Group’s resources and
partnerships with other established Companies in introducing
and providing complementary premium products and services
at competitive and affordable costs to homeowners, at rates
or terms which may only have been available to project
developers.  Such products include sanitary-ware, kitchen
cabinets, furniture and furnishings, lighting and air-
condition systems.

The Directors expect LEPL to contribute positively to the
Group’s turnover and profits in the coming years.

“NH Ceramics - Virtual Showroom”
The web-based “NH - VIRTUAL SHOWROOM”
<www.nhceramics.com.sg> was launched during FY2003.
Unlike a simple website, this Virtual Showroom allows the
visitor to “shop” in the Group’s Main Showroom at Kembangan,
enabling requests for samples and processing of orders.  This
industry first in Singapore will extend the reach of the Group
to consumers and industry consultants alike, and especially to
regional home-owners in Malaysia, Indonesia, Brunei and
Thailand.  This is also in preparation for any release of pent-up
demand forthcoming from a recovery from the years of weak
economic activities and attract the return of regional customers
from these countries who used to source their “imported”
home renovation materials from Singapore in past years.

“NH Ceramics-Value Packs”
NHTP is launching a value-added series of specially selected
and quantified packages of premium tiles, to cater to all the
requirements of HDB Home-Owners.  These provide
comprehensive tiling materials required for HDB 3-Room / 4-
Room / 5-Room renovations at attractive “Value Pack” prices.
HDB customers enjoy great savings on value, made possible
by the wide range of premium tile stock-holdings that NHTP
concurrently supplies to residential condominium projects.

These Value Packs are also expected to generate interest from
Home-Owners of private apartments and landed properties,
as they carry bonus options to purchase additional quantities
at discounted prices required for their renovations.
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“NT-Economy Value”
NAM TAT PTE LTD (“NTPL”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, will be launched to market ranges of economy building
products, especially ceramic tiles and marble products originating
from emerging manufacturing countries of China, Indonesia and
around the region.  This new arm of the Group will penetrate the
economy sector of the Retail Segment which the NH Ceramics
Brand under NHTP would otherwise not have engaged in.

All the above new business programmes by the various
operating subsidiaries of the Group, are expected to contribute
positively to Group results for current FY2004 ending 30th
June 2004.  This is expected to reinforce the results of NHTP
in its efforts to secure bigger market shares.

Information relating to risk management policies
and procedures

a) Quality, Delivery & Performance of Products
The ceramic tile products offered by NHTP are all imported
from foreign manufacturers, to be supplied against locally
specified standards and conditions of contract.  Any failure,
defects, delays or non-compliance in the process of
manufacture, shipments, conditions and performance of the
products against contracted obligations would result in
serious adverse consequences and losses.

Marble tiles and panels, being natural derivatives, are
extremely unpredictable and problematic in conformance
to required specifications or expectations.  These can lead
to controversies and resultant losses and project penalties.

With more than 40 years experience in this business, we
have a policy and practice of working with only a selected
few of reputable and principled manufacturers and suppliers.
Only stable and selected marble ranges are procured for
projects.  We will offer products which we are confident
or comfortable with.

Besides developing strong commercial relationships with
these proven product brands and sources, we also focus
on interacting values of integrity, fairness, cordiality,
confidence and trust with our Principals, in mutual close
collaboration to compete against others.  This is to ensure
not only minimisation of defaults, but greatly enhance our
successes in the local market.

b)  Project Management of Contracts
The bulk of the Group’s turnover are derived from Project
business, which requires especially in-depth product
knowledge, understanding and experience involving
contractual and customary laws and practices, and
operational implications.  Mistakes or oversight in project
management can lead to significant losses and penalties.

Each of our sector sales teams are led by an Executive
Director, each of whom has more than 20 years experience
in this industry.  The Managing Director will also be involved
in the project management team for contracts that exceed
$200,000 in value or are of a complex nature.

c) Customers Credit Exposure
The risk of payment defaults is high, especially in these
difficult times faced by the Construction Industry where
many main contractors have fallen into dire financial straits.

The payment terms required by or accorded to each account
are decided by the respective Project executive, Manager,
sector Director, Financial Controller and Managing Director.
Aging of accounts receivables and collections are monitored
weekly by the Financial Controller and Managing Director.

We employ a series of measures that will be implemented
once an account exceeds its approved limits or payments
are overdue.  These include withholding of further deliveries
and legal action.

To supplement credit control, we took up credit insurance
with a local insurance agency to insure collectibility of large
accounts.  Since 1996, this credit insurance had helped to
insulate the Group from significant losses from such defaults.
This insurance, however, was terminated in February 2003
as the agency drastically changed the terms of future
insurance coverage, as to become unattractive to our
requirement.  We understand that this credit insurance
business has since been discontinued by the agency.
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d) Fluctuations in Foreign Exchange Rates
Up to 70% of all our products sold are imported in Euro
Dollars and United States Dollars.  There is also a long
time lag between our commitment on contracts,
denominated mainly in Singapore Dollars, and the ultimate
imports in foreign currencies.  We are exposed to
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates which can be
detrimental to our contract profitabilities.

We actively monitor foreign currency requirements arising
from contractual and other expected import commitments and
hedge our foreign currencies for periods of up to 12 months.
The hedging exercises are carried out jointly by the Financial
Controller and Managing Director.  The hedging policy covers
approximately up to 80% of expected currency exposure.

Commentary on prospects for the current
Financial Year
Demand for building finishes is expected to remain depressed
for the current financial year, as the low levels of demand
continue to take its toll on the industry members.

Since the 1998 Asian crisis, against a shrinking market pie, the
Group had been consolidating, instituting internal cost-cutting
measures and had reviewed and tightened operational controls
and management.  More significantly, the Group had been
preparing new corporate and marketing programmes to
strengthen its position in all sectors of the industry, to
continually increase its market share, widen its revenue bases
and add on new growth engines.

The above major new business initiatives by NHTP and its
subsidiaries, Nam Tat Pte Ltd and Living Elements Pte Ltd, are
being launched consecutively by the end of 2003.  All these
are expected to contribute positively to Group results for
current FY2004 ending 30th June 2004.

The Group also expects to benefit from the forthcoming public
sector building projects, as part of the $600 million relief
developmental programme announced by the Government.

The Directors have noted that these past six years of difficult
operating environment has had a drastic impact on the Industry,
creating a paradigm shift which has marginalised even well
established competitors.  This has resulted in significantly
reduced competition, albeit in a shrunken market, and
reinforced the momentum of growth of professionalism within
the Building Finishes Industry, and more importantly the entire

Construction Industry, in the provision of quality products and
services.  Such advances are good for the Building Finishes
Industry and favour established reputable firms with emphasis
on value-added services, quality of products and
professionalism, rather than those operating and engaging
merely on trading price wars.

The Directors are of the opinion that NHTP, now in its 41st
Year, and the Group, are well entrenched and yet diversified
within the Industry sectors to weather the current recession,
which seemed to have bottomed, and thereafter, emerging
from the storm to ride the recovery.

The Board expects to drive the Group into FY2004 with much
excitement, developing new growth engines in ever developing,
strengthening and expanding the revenue bases of the Group,
backed by and in turn, enhancing the NH Ceramics Brand
Name.  All these are necessary ingredients to fuel our
future growth.

Barring unforeseen circumstances
on the roll-outs and initial take-offs,
the Directors anticipate better
results for the Group in FY2004,
with the objective of a recovery to
profitability in FY2004.

Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye
Executive Chairman &

Managing Director

NH CERAMICS LTD

Tuas Showroom
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1 Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye
Executive Chairman and
Managing Director

2 Tay Kiam Peng
Executive Director

3 Stephen Tay Chye Heng
Executive Director

4 Margaret Tay Hui Hia
Executive Director

5 Wee Piew
Independent Director

6 Robbie Ooi Seng Soon
Independent Director

Directors and Key Management Staff

4 5

Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye is the Managing Director and is
responsible for the general management of the Group.  He is
also overall in-charge of the Finance Department of the Group.
Ricky Paul Goh joined the Group in 1980 as a General Manager
and under his leadership, the company had grown into one of
the major suppliers of building materials to public and private
sector projects and the retail market in Singapore.  Prior to
joining the Group, he worked as an auditor with an international
public accounting firm and as an officer trainee with an
international bank.  Ricky Paul Goh holds a Bachelor of
Accountancy Degree from the then University of Singapore.
He is a member of the Institute of Certified Public  Accountants
of Singapore.  In his personal capacity, Ricky Paul Goh has served
as a Town Councillor with the Tanjong Pagar Town Council,
Chairman of Duxton Plain Community Centre, Patron of Tanjong
Pagar Community Club, Vice-Chairman of Tanjong Pagar Citizens’
Consultative Committee, President of  Outram Park Shopping
Complex Association, member of Advisory Council on
Community Relations in Defence (ACCORD), member of SAF
Employers’ Award Committee, member of Sub-committee For
Domestic Businesses as part of Committee on Singapore’s
Competitiveness, member of Sub-Committee One as part of

Singapore’s SME21 Committee and member of the SME21
Implementation Committee.

Tay Kiam Peng is an Executive Director responsible for
marketing, product and customer service, and project
management of public sector projects (excluding HDB jobs).
He also oversees all ceramic tile products and accessories and
their related technical matters.  Tay Kiam Peng has been with
the Group since 1974 and has extensive experience in the
building industry, including product knowledge and installation
requisites covering not only ceramic tiles, but also carpets,
special vinyl floorings and computer raised floors.

Stephen Tay Chye Heng is an Executive Director
responsible for marketing, product and customer service, and
project management of HDB jobs.  He joined the Group in
1986 as a sales executive and was promoted to his current
position in 1991.  Stephen Tay has extensive experience in
HDB jobs and he oversees all products and technical matters
related to HDB requirements.   Prior to joining the Group,
Stephen Tay worked as a sales executive with another ceramic
tile company in Singapore.

31 2

6



10Financial  Highlights

Margaret Tay Hui Hia is an Executive Director responsible
for the marketing, product and customer service, and project
management of private sector projects.  She joined the Group
in 1989 as a sales executive and was promoted to her current
position in 1994.  Margaret Tay was instrumental in developing
the marble business of the Group over the past 14 years and
she oversees all marble products and related technical matters.
Prior to joining the Group, Margaret Tay worked as a sales
executive in another company in the marble business.

Wee Piew is an Independent Director and also the Chairman
of the Audit Committee.  He is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of a public listed company.  Previously, he was also the
Chief Executive Officer of another public listed company.  He
also has more than 10 years experience in the banking industry,
being involved with a few banks like DBS Bank and ABN AMRO.

Robbie Ooi Seng Soon is an Independent Director and also
a member of the Audit Committee.  He was Bank Executive,
Algemene Bank Nederlands/ABN AMRO Bank from January
1974 to December 1996; Vice President of Enterprise Banking,
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (but seconded
to Bank of Singapore) from January 1997 to July 1998; was
General Manager of Corporate Affairs with the Envoi Group of
Companies from August 1998 to January 2001.  He has been
appointed as an Independent Director of NH Ceramics Ltd since
January 2001 and was also appointed as an Independent Director
of HG Metal Manufacturing Ltd with effect from February 2002.

Jenna Yeo Mui Kee joined in February 2003 as a Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of Living Elements Pte Ltd.  She is
responsible for the overall leadership and performance of the
design and renovation business in the newly acquired subsidiary.
She brings along substantial experience in interior designing from
various interior design establishments. She graduated from
LaSalle SIA College of Arts majoring in environmental design.

Martina Ho Ngiet Mee is the Purchasing Manager.  She joined
the Group in 1974 and almost 30 years of experience in retail
sales and customer service.  She was responsible for managing
the Retail business segment until 1999.  She conducts in-house
training for retail sales personnel in respect of product
knowledge and customer service.  She is also responsible for
the purchase of inventories for the Retail business segment.

Simon Cheong Ching Hing joined the Group as a Retail
Manager in November 1999.  He has a Diploma in Mechanical
Engineering from Ngee Ann Polytechnic and a Diploma in
Salesmanship from Managing and Marketing Sales Association
Examination Board (UK).  He was previously an assistant sales
manager for Singapore and West Malaysia for a firm relating in
hardware products.  He is responsible for the Retail Business
Segment, which includes the operations of the 3 Retail

Showrooms at Kembangan, Hougang & Tuas, and the Retail
Network of renovation contractors.

Song Yeong Yeong joined in 1993 and currently is the Retail
Project Manager and is responsible for the Sales and Marketing
and management of small and medium size private sector
projects.  She overseas the stock control and identification of
inventories for the Retail business segment.  She holds a Diploma
in Business Studies from Ngee Ann Polytechnic.

Sylvester Lee Kao Chong is the Facilities and Works
Manager.  He joined the Group in 1997 and is responsible for
the development and maintenance of the premises in Tuas and
the three retail showrooms.   He is also responsible for the
procurement and management of the machinery and equipment.
He is involved in the development of the new activities and
services. He holds a Diploma in Mechanical Engineering from
Ngee Ann Polytechnic.

Chan Siang Lim is the Operations Manager.  He joined in
1982 and has more than 20 years of  experience in warehousing
and logistics management.  He oversees the Operations
Department and is responsible for fulfilling daily operational
requirements, including product handling, and personnel
and logistics management of the warehousing and
delivery sections.

Lim Chin Ee is the Financial Controller.  She joined the Group
in 1998 and is responsible for managing the Finance Department
and handling finance-related matters.  She has approximately
12 years of experience in auditing and accounting in various
organisations.  Prior to joining the Group, she was an accountant
at a listed company in the construction-related industry for
about 11/2 years.  Prior to that, she worked as an auditor in a
public accounting firm and as an assistant accountant in a
company providing financial database services in the region.
She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and is a member of the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants of Singapore.

Louis Pang Nghee Thiam is the Administration and Human
Resource Manager and the Joint Corporate Secretary.  He joined
the Group in 1991 and is responsible for the administrative,
manpower and Information Technology matters of the Group.
He was instrumental in the ISO certification process and in
spearheading the computerisation programmes. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked in similar capacity in Human Resources
Management in a multinational company.  He is a member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of
Singapore.  He holds a Master in Business Administration from
the University of Adelaide, Australia.
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Note:
The financial results of the Proforma Group have been prepared
on the basis that the Proforma Group had been in existence
throughtout the periods under review.

For comparative purposes, the earnings per share for FY1999
is calculated based on the profit after taxation but before
extraordinary item and the pre-invitation share capital of
51,977,825 shares.

Earnings per share for FY2000 is calculated by dividing the
Group’s profit after taxation by the weighted average number
of shares in issue during the year of 53,061,158 shares.

Earnings/(loss) per share for FY2001, FY2002 and FY2003
are calculated by dividing the Group’s profit/(loss) after
taxation by the number of shares in issue during the year of
64,977,825 shares.

Turnover (S$’000) Net Tangible Assets (S$’000)

Earnings / (Loss) Per Share (Cents)Profit / (Loss) After Taxation (S$’000)

Financial  HighlightsFinancial Highlights
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22,109

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
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1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

(1,000) (905)

(1,906)

16,000

12,000

8,000

4,000

0

10,389

15,468
14,567

12,509

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

14,719

6.0

4.0

2.0

0

4.13

4.84

0.69

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

(2.0)
(1.39)

(2.93)
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the Corporate Governance and the Strategy of the group.  The Board comprises an
executive chairman, three executive directors and two independent directors.  The Board meets regularly at least twice a year and
at other times when required.

The Board supervises the Management of the business and affairs of the group.  The principal functions of the Board are :

(i) approving the Group’s strategic directions, plans, policies, objectives and monitoring performance of senior management.
(ii) Identifies principal risks of the Group’s business, ensures the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks.
(iii) Reviews the financial results of the Group and evaluates the performance and compensation of senior management.
(iv) Approving major funding proposals, investments, divestments, mergers and acquisitions.
(v) Assuming responsibility for corporate governance.

Directors’ Attendance at Board and Audit Committee Meetings

Name Number Attendance

Board of Directors
Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye 2 100%
Tay Kiam Peng 2 100%
Stephen Tay Chye Heng 2 100%
Margaret Tay Hui Hia 2 100%
Wee Piew 2 100%
Robbie Ooi Seng Soon 2 100%

Audit Committee
Wee Piew 2 100%
Robbie Ooi Seng Soon 2 100%
Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye 2 100%

Management
The Management provides the Board with reports for planning, decision-making and review of six-monthly performances for Public
announcements.  The control of the operations rest with the functional heads.

The Directors may take independent professional advice and receive relevant training whenever applicable so as to maintain continuing
standards and vigilance.

The Board members retires by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association and are eligible to re-election at each Annual
General Meeting.

Chairman, Managing Director
The Chairman and Managing Director are the same person who has considerable experience in the building material construction
industry and is actively involved in the Management of the group.  This arrangement had served us well and the Board feels that this
continuation by capitalising from his expertise gained over the years will be beneficial to the group.

The company secretary attends all board meetings and is responsible to ensure that the Company complies with the requirements
of the Companies Act.  The company secretary with other management staff are responsible for the compliance with other rules and
regulations applicable to the Company.

Corporate Governance
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Access to Information Professional Services
To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities, management provides the executive committee with periodical updates on
status of company’s operations.  The Directors have available access to all information of the Company and direct contact with all
senior management and the company secretary of the Company.

In the event that independent professional advice is needed, the company secretary will, upon the direction by the Board, appoint
competent adviser based on management recommendations, and approved by the Executive Chairman/Managing Director of the
group.  The Company shall bear the cost of professional advice.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises one executive director and two independent directors, one of whom is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.  The members of the Audit Committee are:-

Wee Piew (Independent Director, Chairman of Audit Committee)
Robbie Ooi Seng Soon (Independent Director)
Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye

The Audit Committee performs its functions in accordance with Section 201B(5) of the Companies Act, Cap.50 and the requirements
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.  In performing those functions, the Audit Committee reviewed the overall
scope of external audits and the assistance given by the Company’s officers to the auditor.  The Audit Committee met with the
external auditor to discuss the results of their audits and their evaluation of the systems of internal accounting controls.  The Audit
Committee also reviewed the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2003, as well as the external auditor’s report thereon.

Besides the Best Practice Guide, the Audit Committee abides by the following specific terms of reference.

• Reviews with the external auditors the audit plan and their audit report on evaluation of the system of internal controls and to
monitor Management’s response and actions to correct any noted deficiencies

• Determines that no restrictions are being placed by management upon the work of external auditors
• Reviews the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements as well as the auditors’ report thereon;
• Reviews the appropriateness of half-year and full year announcements prior to submission to the Board for adoption and release;
• Reviews interested person transactions
• Evaluates the independence of external auditors and nominates them for reappointment;
• Has the authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference.

The Audit Committee has been given full access to and co-operation of the Company’s management and has reasonable resources
to enable it to discharge its functions properly.  Executive directors and executive officers had been attending the Audit Committee
meetings when so invited.

The Audit Committee had reviewed Ms Ernst & Young’s provision of Business Advisory Services in respect of the Business Plan for
the MASLine and Taxation services.  They are of the opinion that such services do not affect the independence of the auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary, the system of internal control maintained by the company’s
management and that was in place throughout the financial year and up to the date of this report provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material financial misstatements or loss, and includes the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of
proper accounting records, the reliability of financial information, compliance with appropriate legislation, regulation and best practice,
and the identification and containment of business risk.  The Board notes that no system of internal control could provide absolute
assurance against the occurrence of material errors, poor judgement in decision-making, human error, fraud or other irregularities.
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INTERNAL AUDIT
In view of the cost involved, the Company currently has no separate internal audit function.  The Company through its principal
subsidiary’s department reviews the Group’s internal controls, risk management and compliance systems and reports findings and
makes recommendations to the management.  However, the Board believes that the existing system of internal controls is adequate.

The current system does not warrant a need for an independent audit department but the Audit Committee shall review the
situation yearly to determine whether a separate internal audit function need to be implemented.

Nominating Committee
The Company has decided to postpone the set-up of a Nominating Committee due to cost reasons and the urgent need to
consolidate market position in the depressed construction industry.

The Directors are identified by the Executive Chairman/Managing Director based on the appropriate expertise and background and
will serve until the next Annual General Meeting retiring by rotation in accordance with the articles of Association

Recruitment of Management Staff is evaluated through Board consensus on the basis of operational need and appropriateness of
candidates competency.  Management succession through internal promotion is much encouraged to foster commitment and loyalty.

The Company will review the need for a Nominating Committee at the appropriate time.

Remuneration Committee
The Board has decided to operate without a Remuneration Committee because of costs concern and a need to remain focused on
business development during the weak market environment.

The Group offers competitive remuneration to recruit and retain employees based on their responsibility, contribution to the
Company and effective performances.

The Executive Directors are engaged under a yearly renewal service agreement with its principal subsidiary.  No directors fee, share
plan nor share options applies to the Executive Directors.

The Non-Executive Directors are paid directors fees subject to the approval at  Annual General Meeting and are disclosed in the
Annual Report.  Non-Executive Directors have no service contracts and their term is specified in the Articles.

The Company will review the need for a Remuneration Committee at the appropriate time.

Directors’ Remuneration
A breakdown showing the level and mix of each individual director’s remuneration payable for the financial year ended 30th June
2003 is as follows:-

Name Salary Fees Bonus Total
(%) (%) (%)  (%)

Below S$250,000

Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye 100 NIL NIL 100
Tay Kiam Peng 100 NIL NIL 100
Stephen Tay Chye Heng 100 NIL NIL 100
Margaret Tay Hui Hia 100 NIL NIL 100
Wee Piew NA 100 NA 100
Robbie Ooi Seng Soon NA 100 NA 100

Corporate Governance
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Communication with Shareholders
The Company has adopted half-yearly reporting since its listing.  This is broadcast to the public through the MASNET and subsequently
via the Company’s website www.nhceramics.com.sg.  All information on the Company’s new initiatives are first disseminated via
MASNET followed by news releases.

The Company has a publicity agent which keeps the public and shareholders informed of its developments through corporate
website, chinese media portal www.zaobao.com and press releases.

The Company holds its annual general meeting at its registered office yearly and provides shareholders the opportunity to clarify
issues.

Dealings in Securities
The Company has adopted internal codes pursuant to the SGX-ST Best Practices Guide applicable to all its officers in relation to
dealings in the Company’s securities.  Its officers are not allowed to deal in the Company’s shares during the period commencing one
month before the announcement of the Company’s half-yearly and yearly results and ending on the date of the announcement.

Interested Person Transaction
The Company has notified relevant parties with regard to any transactions with interested persons and has instructions for review
and approval of the Company’s interested person transactions.

There were no interested person transactions for the financial year which fall under the Listing Manual of Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

Best Practice Guide
The Board supports the continuing improvement on Corporate Governance and except for the deviations as disclosed, confirms
compliance with the Best Practices Guide issued by SGX-ST.
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The Directors present their report to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the financial year ended 30 June 2003.

Directors

The Directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:

Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye (Executive Chairman and Managing Director)
Tay Kiam Peng (Executive Director)
Stephen Tay Chye Heng (Executive Director)
Margaret Tay Hui Hia (Executive Director)
Wee Piew
Robbie Ooi Seng Soon

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.  The principal activities of the subsidiary companies consist of
acting as a specialist supplier and stockist of ceramic tiles, marble and other finishing and building products; processing, fabrication
and precision cutting of building materials, and those of interior design and renovation.

There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Results for the financial year

Group Company
$ $

(Loss)/profit for the year (1,905,943) 2,428,753

Material movements in reserves and provisions

The transfers to and from reserves during financial year are disclosed in the Statements of Changes in Equity of the Company and
the Group.  There were no other material transfers to or from reserves or provisions except as disclosed in the financial statements.

Acquisition and disposal of subsidiary companies

On 13 February 2003, Nam Tat Pte. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary company of the Company acquired a 100% equity interest in
Living Elements Pte. Ltd. (“LEPL”), which comprised 2 ordinary shares of $1 each for a cash consideration of $100,000.  The net
tangible assets of LEPL at the date of acquisition amounted to $2.

Except for the above, there was no other acquisition or disposal of subsidiary companies during the financial year.

Issue of shares, debentures and options

The Company and its subsidiary companies did not issue any shares or debentures during the financial year.  There is presently no
share option scheme on unissued shares of the Company and its subsidiary companies.

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 30 June 2003
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Arrangements to enable Directors to acquire shares and debentures

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement whose object is to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

The following Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had, according to the register of Directors’ shareholdings
required to be kept under Section 164 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, an interest in shares of the Company and related corporations
as stated below:

Held in name of Directors Deemed interest
At the At the

beginning At the beginning At the
of the end of the of the end of the

financial financial financial financial
Name of Directors year year year year

The Company
Ordinary shares of $0.20 each

Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye 13,411,690 13,481,690 27,758,000 27,758,000
Tay Kiam Peng 2,528,165 2,528,165 8,000 18,000
Stephen Tay Chye Heng 1,688,905 1,688,905 – –
Margaret Tay Hui Hia 1,688,905 1,688,905 – –
Robbie Ooi Seng Soon 30,000 30,000 – –

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests between the end of the financial year and 21 July 2003.

By virtue of Section 7 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, Messr Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by the Company in its subsidiary companies.

Except as disclosed above, no other Director who held office at the end of the financial year had an interest in any shares or
debentures of the Company and its subsidiary companies.

Except as disclosed above, no Director has received or become entitled to receive any other benefits under contracts required to
be disclosed by Section 201(8) of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 since the end of the previous financial year.

Dividends

Dividends paid or proposed since the end of the previous financial year were as follows:

$
A final dividend of 0.3 cents per share, less income tax at

22.0%, paid in respect of the previous financial year 152,048

An interim dividend of 0.3 cents per share, less income tax
at 22.0%, paid in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2003 152,048
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Bad and doubtful debts

Before the profit and loss account and the balance sheet of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts
and have satisfied themselves that no debts of the Company need to be written off as bad and that no provision for doubtful debts
was required.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render any amount written off or provided
for doubtful debts in the Group inadequate to any substantial extent.

Current assets

Before the profit and loss account and the balance sheet of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their book values in the ordinary course of business have been
written down to their estimated realisable values or that adequate provision had been made for the diminution in value of such
current assets.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed to current
assets in the consolidated financial statements of the Group misleading.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities

Since the end of the financial year, and up to the date of this report, no charge on the assets of the Company or the Group has arisen
which secures the liabilities of any other person and no contingent liability has arisen.

Ability to meet obligations

No contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after
the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Company or of
the Group to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.

Other circumstances affecting the financial statements

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report which would
render any amount stated in the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group
misleading.

Unusual items

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Company and of the Group during the financial year have not
been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

Unusual items after the financial year

In the opinion of the Directors, no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the
end of the financial year and the date of this report which would affect substantially the results of the operations of the Company and
of the Group for the financial year in which this report is made.
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Directors’ contractual benefits
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by
reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director, or with a firm of which the Director is a
member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises one Executive Director and two Independent Directors, one of whom is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.  The members of the Audit Committee are:

Wee Piew (Independent Director, Chairman of Audit Committee)
Robbie Ooi Seng Soon (Independent Director)
Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye

The function and scope of the Audit Committee are outlined in the Corporate Governance.  The Audit Committee also reviewed
the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2003, as
well as the external auditor’s report thereon.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that Ernst & Young, be nominated for reappointment as auditor at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Interested party transactions

There were no interested person transactions within the meaning of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited during the financial year.

Other information required by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

No material contracts to which the Company or its subsidiary companies are a party and which involve Directors’ interests
subsisted at the end of the financial year, or have been entered into since the end of the previous financial year.

Auditor

Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants, have expressed their willingness to accept reappointment as auditor.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye
Director

Tay Kiam Peng
Director

Singapore

9 October 2003
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We, Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye and Tay Kiam Peng, being two of the Directors of NH Ceramics Ltd and its subsidiary companies, do
hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors,

(i) the accompanying balance sheets, profit and loss accounts, statements of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
together with the notes thereto, set out on pages 22 to 50 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2003, and of the business and changes in the equity of the Company and of the
Group and cash flows of the Group for the financial year then ended; and

(ii) at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye
Director

Tay Kiam Peng
Director

Singapore

9 October 2003

Directors’ Report
30 June 2003

Statement by Directors
Pursuant to Section 201(15)
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We have audited the financial statements of NH Ceramics Ltd (the “Company”) and the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary companies (the “Group”) set out on pages 22 to 50.  These financial statements comprise the balance
sheets  of the Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2003, the profit and loss accounts and the statements of changes in equity of
the Company and of the Group, the cash flow statement of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2003 and the notes thereto.  These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s Directors.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,

(a) the financial statements and the consolidated financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act (“Act”) and Singapore Statements of Accounting Standard and so as to give a true and fair view of:

(i) the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2003, and of the results and changes in equity of the
Company and of the Group and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended on that date; and

(ii) the other matters required by Section 201 of the Act to be dealt with in the financial statements and the consolidated
financial statements;

(b) the accounting and other records, and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and its subsidiary companies
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiary companies that have been consolidated with the financial statements
of the Company are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations as required by us for those purposes.

The auditor’s reports on the financial statements of the subsidiary companies were not subject to any qualification and did not
include any comment made under Section 207(3) of the Act.

ERNST & YOUNG
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore

9 October 2003

Auditor’s Report
to the Members of
NH Ceramics Ltd and Subsidiary Companies
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Note Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002

$ $ $ $

Non current assets
Fixed assets 3 14,850,794 15,315,107 – –
Investments 4 1,089,966 732,745 – –
Subsidiary companies 5 – – 10,395,563 10,395,563
Amount due from a subsidiary company

(non-trade) 6 – – 5,214,024 3,120,378
Goodwill arising on consolidation 7 – – – –

Current assets
Stocks 8 10,677,352 12,286,203 – –
Trade debtors 9 5,532,405 6,166,535 – –
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 10 715,050 1,010,773 90,162 75,704
Cash and bank balances 84,423 199,183 11,481 8,572

17,009,230 19,662,694 101,643 84,276
Current liabilities
Trade creditors 3,198,742 6,304,149 – –
Bills payable to banks (secured) 11 3,620,314 2,388,760 – –
Other creditors and accruals 12 415,653 431,411 65,126 78,770
Provision for income tax – 586,582 – –
Bank term loans (current portion) 13 5,951,965 4,428,570 – –
Bank overdrafts (secured) 14 1,809,215 190,577 – –
Lease obligations (current portion) 15 34,785 270,879 – –
Progress billings in excess of work-in-progress 16 66,334 – – –

15,097,008 14,600,928 65,126 78,770

Net current assets 1,912,222 5,061,766 36,517 5,506

Non-current liabilities
Bank term loans (non-current portion) 13 4,698,276 5,803,002 – –
Lease obligations (non-current portion) 15 133,395 231,191 – –
Deferred income tax 23 511,925 356,000 – –

12,509,386 14,719,425 15,646,104 13,521,447

Equity
Share capital 17 12,995,565 12,995,565 12,995,565 12,995,565
Share premium 18 197,384 197,384 197,384 197,384
Accumulated (losses)/profits (683,563) 1,526,476 2,453,155 328,498

12,509,386 14,719,425 15,646,104 13,521,447

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Note Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002

$ $ $ $

Revenues
Project sales 16,812,398 24,773,137 – –
Retail sales 4,922,448 6,049,904 – –
Interior design and renovation income 374,636 – – –
Dividend income from unquoted subsidiary

company – – 3,280,002 656,000

22,109,482 30,823,041 3,280,002 656,000

Costs and expenses
Changes in stocks of trading goods (1,608,850) (194,083) – –
Purchases and services consumed (15,527,352) (21,972,435) – –
Staff costs 19 (2,572,504) (2,900,907) – –
Depreciation of fixed assets 3 (997,420) (964,308) – –
Other operating expenses (3,156,395) (3,743,596) (166,704) (135,658)
Other income 20 149,684 334,228 – –
Financial costs 21 (643,798) (761,286) (80) (70)

(24,356,635) (30,202,387) (166,784) (135,728)

(Loss)/profit before income tax 22 (2,247,153) 620,654 3,113,218 520,272
Income tax 23 341,210 (169,172) (684,465) (128,360)

Net (loss)/profit for the year (1,905,943) 451,482 2,428,753 391,912

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (cents) 24 (2.93) 0.69
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (cents) 24 (2.93) 0.69

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.

Profit and Loss Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2003
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Accumulated
Share Share profits/

capital premium (losses) Total
$ $ $ $

GROUP

Balance at 30 June 2001 12,995,565 197,384 1,374,217 14,567,166
Net profit – – 451,482 451,482
Dividends (Note 25) – – (299,223) (299,223)

Balance at 30 June 2002 12,995,565 197,384 1,526,476 14,719,425
Net loss – – (1,905,943) (1,905,943)
Dividends (Note 25) – – (304,096) (304,096)

Balance at 30 June 2003 12,995,565 197,384 (683,563) 12,509,386

COMPANY

Balance at 30 June 2001 12,995,565 197,384 235,809 13,428,758
Net profit – – 391,912 391,912
Dividends (Note 25) – – (299,223) (299,223)

Balance at 30 June 2002 12,995,565 197,384 328,498 13,521,447
Net profit – – 2,428,753 2,428,753
Dividends (Note 25) – – (304,096) (304,096)

Balance at 30 June 2003 12,995,565 197,384 2,453,155 15,646,104

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.

Statements of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2003
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Note 2003 2002
$ $

Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax (2,247,153) 620,654
Adjustment for:

Bad trade debts recovered (48,004) (11,289)
Provision for impairment in value of club membership/quoted investments – 55,000
Provision for doubtful trade debts 49,180 85,618
Depreciation of fixed assets 997,420 964,308
Interest expenses 580,360 679,553
Dividend income from quoted investments (100) (100)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (47,873) (26,107)
Provision for stock obsolescence 160,595 72,269
Loss/(gain) on disposal of quoted investments 204,480 (6,143)
Provision for impairment of goodwill arising on consolidation 99,998 –

Operating cash flows before reinvestment in working capital (251,097) 2,433,763

(Increase)/decrease in:
Stocks 1,448,256 121,814
Trade debtors 632,954 3,348,839
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 593,253 (496,462)

Increase/(decrease) in:
Trade creditors and bills payable to banks (1,873,853) 545,383
Other creditors and accruals (15,758) (269,444)
Progress billings in excess of work-in-progress 66,334 –

Cash generated from operations 600,089 5,683,893
Interest paid (580,360) (679,553)
Income taxes paid (386,978) 55,906

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (367,249) 5,060,246

Cash flow from investing activities
Investment in quoted equity shares (238,847) (594,733)
Proceeds from sale of quoted equity investments 250,323 341,148
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 51,456 31,563
Purchase of fixed assets A (452,495) (1,139,967)
Dividend income from quoted investments 100 100
Investment in freehold property (573,176) (489,984)
Acquisition of subsidiary company, net of cash acquired B (99,998)  –

Net cash used in investing activities (1,062,637) (1,851,873)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2003
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Note 2003 2002
$ $

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from bank term loans 418,669 2,363,390
Repayment of lease obligations (418,085) (487,778)
Dividends paid to shareholders (304,096) (299,223)

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (303,512) 1,576,389

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,733,398) 4,784,762
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,606 (4,776,156)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year C (1,724,792) 8,606

A. Fixed assets
During the financial year, the Group acquired fixed assets with an aggregate cost of $536,690 (2002: $1,387,768) of which $84,195
(2002: $247,801) was acquired by means of finance leases.  Cash payments of $452,495 (2002: $1,139,967) were made to purchase
fixed assets.

B. Acquisition of a subsidiary company
During the period the Group acquired a subsidiary company.  The fair value of assets acquired was as follows:

2003 2002
$ $

Cash 2 –

Total purchase price 100,000 –
Less: Cash of the subsidiary company (2) –

Cash flow on acquisition, net of cash acquired 99,998 –

C. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the following balance sheet amounts:

2003 2002
$ $

Cash and bank balances 84,423 199,183
Bank overdrafts (secured) (1,809,215) (190,577)

Cash and cash equivalents (1,724,792) 8,606

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2003
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1. Corporate information

The financial statements of NH Ceramics Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiary companies (the “Group”) for the year ended
30 June 2003 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 9 October 2003.

The Company is a public company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, incorporated and domiciled
in Singapore.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.  The principal activities of the subsidiary companies consist
of acting as a specialist supplier and stockist of ceramic tiles, marble and other finishing and building products; processing,
fabrication and precision cutting of building materials, and those of interior design and renovation.

There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

The registered office of the Company is located at 1 & 3 Tuas Avenue 8, Jurong Industrial Estate, Singapore 639217, which is also
its principal place of business.

The Company and the Group employed Nil and 94 (2002: Nil and 81) employees as of 30 June 2003 respectively.

On 13 February 2003, Nam Tat Pte. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary company of the Company acquired a 100% equity interest
in Living Elements Pte. Ltd. (“LEPL”), which comprised 2 ordinary shares of $1 each for a cash consideration of $100,000.  The
net tangible assets of LEPL at the date of acquisition amounted to $2.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Statements of Accounting Standard and applicable
requirements of Singapore law and under the historical cost basis.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and the Group and are consistent with those
used in the previous financial year.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars unless otherwise indicated.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies.  The
results of subsidiary companies acquired or sold during the year are included in or excluded from the consolidated
financial statements with effect from the respective dates of acquisition or disposal.  All intercompany balances, transactions
and any unrealised profit or loss on intercompany transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances.

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2003
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(c) Revenue recognition

Income from sale of goods is recognised upon delivery of goods and acceptance by customers.

Revenue from interior design and renovation contracts are recognised on the percentage of completion method determined
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of each financial year.  Where the outcome of
the contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the balance sheet date, determined after considering the relationship of the value of work performed
to-date to total contracted revenue for the contract.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(d) Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss.  The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.  Expenditure
for additions, improvements and renewals are capitalised and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
the profit and loss account.  When assets are sold or retired, their costs and accumulated depreciation are removed from
the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the profit and loss account. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged to the profit and loss account on the basis outlined in paragraph (e) below.

(e) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the costs of fixed assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Years

Freehold property 50
Leasehold properties 30 - 50
Motor vehicles 10
Plant and machinery 10
Production machinery 10
Computers   3
Furniture and fittings 10
Office equipment 10
Warehouse equipment 10

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further charge for depreciation
is made in respect of these assets.

(f) Subsidiary companies

A subsidiary company is defined as a company in which the investing company has a long term equity interest of more
than 50% or in whose financial and operating decisions the Company controls.

Investments in subsidiary companies are stated in the financial statements of the Company at cost less impairment loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(g) Investments

Quoted investments are stated at the lower of cost and market value determined on an aggregate portfolio basis.

Investments in club membership and freehold property held on a long-term basis are stated at cost. Provision is made
for any impairment in value.

(h) Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in first-out basis.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less anticipated cost of
disposal and after making allowance for damaged, obsolete and slow-moving stocks.

Provision is made for deteriorated, damaged and slow-moving stocks.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand and at bank, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

Cash on hand and at banks are carried at cost.

(j) Trade and other debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised and carried at original invoiced amount less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts.  An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.  Bad debts are
written off as incurred.

Amounts due from subsidiary companies are recognised and carried at cost less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts.

(k) Work-in-progress

Work-in-progress comprises uncompleted renovation contracts.  It is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.  Cost is made up of material, direct labour, sub-contractors’ costs and other directly related expenses.  Provision
is made for anticipated losses, if any on work-in-progress when the possibility of loss is ascertained.

(l) Goodwill arising on consolidation

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiary companies represents the excess of the purchase consideration
over the Group’s share of the estimated fair value ascribed to the identifiable net assets of a subsidiary company at
the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is capitalised and amortised systematically on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life and/or over
a period not exceeding 10 years.  The amortisation charge for each period is recognised as an expense in the
consolidated profit and loss account.

The estimated useful life is revised for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.  Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(l) Goodwill arising on consolidation (cont’d)

(ii) Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to an expectation of future losses and expenses that are identified in the
Group’s plan of acquisition and can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable liabilities, that
portion of negative goodwill is recognised to the profit and loss account when the future losses and expenses are
recognised.  Any remaining negative goodwill, but not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired,
is recognised in the profit and loss account over the remaining weighted average useful life of those assets that are
depreciable or amortisable.  Negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the non-monetary assets is recognised
immediately in the profit and loss account.

(m) Trade and other creditors

Liabilities for trade and other creditors are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the
future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

(n) Finance leases

Fixed assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.  The capital
elements of future lease obligations are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the profit and loss
account over the period of the lease to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital repayments outstanding.

(o) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.  Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary
companies except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At each balance sheet date, the Group re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets and the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets.  The Group recognises a previously unrecognised deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.  The Group conversely reduces the carrying
amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow the benefit of part or all of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Current tax and deferred tax are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged, in the same or a different period, directly to equity.



31 N H  C e r a m i c s  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 3

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(p) Derivative financial instruments

The Group has forward exchange contracts entered into for hedging purposes that do not qualify for hedge
accounting.  Accordingly, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument are taken
directly to the profit and loss account.

(q) Foreign currencies transactions

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at exchange rates closely approximating those
ruling on the transaction dates.  Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into local
currency at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.  All exchange differences arising from conversion are included
in the profit and loss account.

(r) Employee benefits

As required by law, the Group makes contributions to the state pension scheme, the Central Provident Fund Board
(“CPF”).  CPF contributions are recognised as compensation expense in the same period as the employment that gives
rise to the contribution.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.  An accrual is made for estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of service rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

(s) Amounts due to bankers and finance costs

Amounts due to bankers are recognised cost, being the fair value of the consideration received and includes acquisition
costs associated with the borrowing.

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(t) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(u) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.  All impairment
losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or impairment, had no impairment loss been recognised.  All
reversals of impairment are recognised in the profit and loss account.
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3. Fixed assets (cont’d)

(a) Motor vehicles with net book values of approximately $254,000 (2002: $1,103,000) were acquired under finance leases
(Note 15). Production machinery with net book values of approximately $471,000 (2002: $580,000) (Note 13) and
freehold property and leasehold properties with net book values of approximately $11,308,000 (2002: $11,690,000)
(Notes 11,13 and 14) have been pledged to certain banks for banking facilities granted.

(b) Included in production machinery in the current financial year is the development cost relating to the Marble Automated
Selection Line (MASLine) system, amounting to $330,000 (2002: $249,000).  PSB Corporation Pte Ltd (“PSB”) has been
engaged as the project consultant for the development of the MASLine which is an invention of a subsidiary company with
application for patent in progress.  As at balance sheet date, the prototype stage has been completed and the project is
currently in final developmental phase.  The development cost has not been depreciated as the fixed asset has not been
put into operation in the current financial year.

(c) Major properties of the Group are as follows:

Area
(square Tenure

Description Location metres)  of lease Net book value
2003 2002

$ $

Freehold property 5 Jalan Masjid, 410 Freehold 2,609,064 2,664,576
#01-09
Kembangan Court,
Singapore 418924

Leasehold properties 1 & 3 Tuas 8,855 30 years 7,590,502 7,893,266
Avenue 8, from
Jurong Industrial 1 January
Estate, 1997
Singapore 639217

Block 210, 166 90 years 1,108,354 1,131,935
#01-243 from
Hougang Street 21, 1 April
Singapore 530210 1993

11,307,920 11,689,777
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4. Investments

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Club membership, at cost 44,033 44,033
Quoted equity investments, at cost 34,000 293,728
Investment in freehold property* (Note 26(c)) 1,063,160 489,984

1,141,193 827,745

Less: Provision for impairment in value of:
- club membership (note (i)) (30,000) (30,000)
- quoted equity investments (note (ii)) (21,227) (65,000)

1,089,966 732,745
(i) Movements of provision for impairment

in value of club membership:
Balance at beginning of year (30,000) (16,000)
Charge for the year (Note 22) – (14,000)

Balance at end of year (30,000) (30,000)

(ii) Movements of provision for impairment
in value of quoted equity investments:

Balance at beginning of year (65,000) (24,000)
Charge for the year (Note 22) – (41,000)
Written off for the year 43,773 –

Balance at end of year (21,227) (65,000)

Market value of club membership – 14,000

Market value of quoted equity investments 12,800 228,500

* Freehold property with a cost of $1,063,160 (2002: $489,984) has been pledged to secure bank term loans (Note 13).
The freehold property is unoccupied as at year end.
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5. Subsidiary companies
The subsidiary companies as at 30 June 2003 are:

Country of Percentage
incorporation and of equity held Cost of investment

Name of company Principal activities place of business by the Group by the Company
2003 2002 2003 2002

% % $ $

HELD BY THE COMPANY

*Nam Huat Tiling  Specialist supplier Singapore 100 100 10,395,563 10,395,563
& Panelling and stockist of
Co. Pte. Ltd. ceramic tiles,
(“NHTP”) marble and other

 finishing and
building products;

processing,
fabrication

and precision
cutting of building

materials.

HELD BY NHTP

*Nam Tat Pte. Ltd. Dormant Singapore 100 100 – –

HELD BY NAM TAT
PTE. LTD.

* Living Elements Interior design Singapore 100 – – –
Pte. Ltd. and renovation

10,395,563 10,395,563

* Audited by Ernst & Young Singapore

6. Amount due from a subsidiary company (non-trade)

This amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is not expected to be repaid within the next twelve months.
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7. Goodwill arising on consolidation

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Cost
Balance at beginning of year – –
Arising from acquisition of a subsidiary company 99,998 –

Balance at end of year 99,998 –

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at beginning of year – –
Provision for impairment (Note 22) 99,998 –

Balance at end of year 99,998 –

Net book value
Balance at end of year – –

8. Stocks

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Trading stocks, at cost 11,458,378 12,869,676
Stocks-in-transit, at cost 832 37,790

11,459,210 12,907,466
Less: Provision for stock obsolescence (Note (i)) (781,858) (621,263)

10,677,352 12,286,203

(i) Movement in provision for stock obsolescence:

Balance at beginning of year (621,263) (548,994)
Charge during the year (Note 22) (160,595) (72,269)

Balance at end of year (781,858) (621,263)
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9. Trade debtors

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Trade debtors, net of provision 5,532,405 6,166,535

Provision for doubtful debts (69,313) (21,989)

Analysis of provision for doubtful debt:
Balance at beginning of year (21,989) (265,099)
Charge during the year (Note 22) (49,180) (85,618)
Write-off against provision 1,856 328,728

Balance at end of year (69,313) (21,989)

Bad debt written off directly to the profit and loss account (Note 22) (127,625) (157,506)

10. Other debtors, deposits and prepayments

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002

$ $ $ $

Other debtors 200,642 778,544 – –
Deposits 66,757 72,265 – –
Prepayments 75,649 93,072 12,866 35,544
Staff loans 34,312 26,732 – –
Tax recoverable 337,690 40,160 77,296 40,160

715,050 1,010,773 90,162 75,704

Bad debts written off directly to the
profit and loss account (Note 22) (1,381) (400) – –

Tax recoverable is subject to agreement with the Income Tax Authorities and compliance with the relevant provisions of the
Singapore Income Tax Act.
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11. Bills payable to banks (secured)

Bills payable to banks comprise the following:

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Bills payable A 727,212 557,108
Bills payable B 1,700,946 1,831,652
Bills payable C 1,192,156 –

3,620,314 2,388,760

Details of the bills payable are as follows:

Bills payable A are secured by way of a legal mortgage on leasehold properties of a subsidiary company with net book values of
approximately $7,591,000 (2002: $7,893,000) (Note 3) and are guaranteed by the Company.

Bills payable B are guaranteed by the Company.

Bills payable C are secured by way of a legal mortgage on freehold and leasehold properties of a subsidiary company with net
book values of approximately $2,609,000 and $1,108,000 (2002: $Nil and $Nil) (Note 3) respectively and are also guaranteed
by the Company.

12. Other creditors and accruals

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002

$ $ $ $

Sundry creditors 3,694 9,205 – –
Accrued operating expenses 411,959 422,206 65,126 78,770

415,653 431,411 65,126 78,770
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13. Bank term loans

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Secured term loans
Bank loans A 2,866,595 3,666,575
Bank loans B 187,252 273,676
Bank loans C – 2,901,321
Bank loans D 3,000,000 3,000,000
Bank loans E 830,000 390,000
Bank loans F 2,766,394 –
Bank loan G 1,000,000 –

10,650,241 10,231,572

Classified as:
Current portion - due within 12 months 5,951,965 4,428,570
Non-current portion - due after 12 months 4,698,276 5,803,002

10,650,241 10,231,572

Details of secured term loans are as follows:

Bank loans A are secured by way of a legal mortgage on a subsidiary company’s leasehold properties with net book values of
approximately $7,591,000 (2002: $7,893,000) (Note 3) and are guaranteed by the Company.  Interest is payable at 4.5% per annum
for the first year, 4.75% per annum for the second and third years and, thereafter at the bank’s prevailing prime lending rate.

Bank loans B are secured on 3 machinery of a subsidiary company with net book values of approximately $471,000 (2002:
$580,000) (Note 3) and are guaranteed by the Company.  The loans are repayable in 84 equal instalments over 7 years and
interest is payable at 4% per annum under the Local Enterprise Financing Scheme.

Bank loans C are secured by way of a legal mortgage on a subsidiary company’s freehold property and a leasehold property
with net book values of approximately $Nil and $Nil  (2002: $2,665,000 and $1,132,000) respectively and are guaranteed by
the Company.  The loans are repayable in 180 equal instalments over 15 years and interest is payable at the average of certain
banks’ prime lending rates on the last day of the preceding month for the first three years.  Subsequently, interest is payable at
0.375% above the average of certain banks’ prime lending rates on the last day of the preceding month.  During the financial
year, the loans were terminated and refinanced by bank loans F.

Bank loans D are secured by way of a legal mortgage on a subsidiary company’s leasehold properties with net book values of
approximately $7,591,000 (2002: $7,893,000) (Note 3) and are guaranteed by the Company.  It is repayable within 1 to 6
months.  Interest is payable at 1.5% per annum over the bank’s cost of funds.  The interest rate will be fixed at each drawdown
at a mutually agreed rate.

Bank loans E are secured by way of a legal mortgage on a subsidiary company’s investment property (Note 4) and is guaranteed
by the Company. It is repayable within 6 months. Interest is payable at 1.5% per annum over the bank’s cost of funds.  The
interest rate will be fixed at each drawdown at a mutually agreed rate.
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13. Bank term loans (cont’d)

Details of secured term loans are as follows (cont’d):

Bank loans F are secured by way of a legal mortgage on a subsidiary company’s freehold property and a leasehold property with
net book values of approximately $2,609,000 and $1,108,000 (2002: $2,665,000 and $1,132,000) (Note 3) respectively and are
guaranteed by the Company.  The loans are repayable in 120 instalments over 10 years and interest is payable at 4.25% per
annum for the first year, 4.5% per annum for the second year, board rate less 0.75% per annum for the third year and, thereafter
at the bank’s board rates.

Bank loan G is secured by way of a legal mortgage on a subsidiary company’s freehold property and a leasehold property with
net book values of approximately $2,609,000 and $1,108,000 (2002: $2,665,000 and $1,132,000) (Note 3) respectively and are
guaranteed by the Company. It is repayable within 6 months.  Interest is payable at 2% per annum over the bank’s cost of funds.
The interest rate will be fixed at each drawdown at a mutually agreed rate.

14. Bank overdrafts (secured)

These balances are secured by:

(i) a legal mortgage on freehold and leasehold properties of a subsidiary company with net book values of approximately
$2,609,000 and $8,699,000 (2002: $Nil and $7,893,000) (Note 3) respectively; and

(ii) a guarantee by the Company.

The bank overdrafts bear interest ranging from the banks’ prime rates to prime plus 1%, which is also the effective interest rate.

15. Lease obligations

Minimum lease  Net present value
payments of lease payments

2003 2002 2003 2002
Group $ $ $ $

Future payments payable for finance leases

Within one year 42,576 298,502 34,785 270,879
Within two to five years 142,264 260,582 120,840 231,191
After five years 12,922 – 12,555 –

197,762 559,084 168,180 502,070

Finance charges allocated to future periods (29,582) (57,014) – –

168,180 502,070 168,180 502,070

Current portion 34,785 270,879 34,785 270,879
Non-current portion 133,395 231,191 133,395 231,191

168,180 502,070 168,180 502,070
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15. Lease obligations (cont’d)

Lease terms range from 4 years to 6 years (2002: 3 years to 7 years).  Lease terms do not contain restrictions concerning
dividends, additional debt or further leasing. The effective interest rates implicit in the leases are 5.00% to 5.17% (2002: 2.35%
to 4.25%) per annum.

All assets acquired under finance leases are secured.  The net book values of assets acquired under finance leases are disclosed
in Note 3.

The finance leases do not contain any escalation clauses and do not provide for contingent rents.

16. Progress billings in excess of work-in-progress

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Progress billings 207,283 –
Less: Cost plus attributable profits (140,949) –

66,334 –

17. Share capital

Group and Company
2003 2002

$ $

Authorised:
Balance at 1 July and 30 June
100,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.20 each 20,000,000 20,000,000

Issued and fully paid:
Balance at 1 July and 30 June
64,977,825 ordinary shares of $0.20 each 12,995,565 12,995,565

The holder of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company.  All ordinary shares carry
one vote per share without restrictions.

18. Share premium

The share premium account may be applied only for the purposes specified in the Companies Act. The balance is not available
for distribution of dividends except in the form of shares.
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19. Staff costs

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Salaries, wages, bonuses and other costs (2,242,190) (2,540,821)
Central Provident Fund contributions (330,314) (360,086)

(2,572,504) (2,900,907)

20. Other income

Group
2003 2002

$ $

(Loss)/gain on disposal of quoted investments (204,480) 6,143
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 47,873 26,107
Bad trade debts recovered 48,004 11,289
Exchange gain, net 192,066 266,357
Miscellaneous income 66,121 79,232
Dividend income from quoted investments 100 100
Provision for impairment in value of club membership/quoted investments – (55,000)

149,684 334,228

21. Financial costs

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002

$ $ $ $

Interest expenses
- bank overdrafts (66,468) (127,573) – –
- bank term loans (416,676) (392,414) – –
- bills payable to banks (71,805) (117,040) – –
- lease obligations (25,411) (42,526) – –

Others
-  bank charges (63,438) (81,733) (80) (70)

(643,798) (761,286) (80) (70)
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22. (Loss)/profit before income tax

(Loss)/profit before income tax is stated after (charging)/crediting the following:

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002

$ $ $ $

Auditors’ remuneration
auditors of the Company

- audit fees (65,000) (50,000) (7,000) (5,800)
- non-audit fees (14,900) – (1,200) –

other auditors
- audit fees – (10,000) – (1,200)
- non-audit fees – (14,000) – (2,700)

Bad debts written off
- trade (Note 9) (127,625) (157,506) – –
- non-trade (Note 10) (1,381) (400) – –
Depreciation of fixed assets (Note 3) (997,420) (964,308) – –
Directors’ remuneration (814,944) (924,810) – –
Directors’ fees (49,333) (70,055) (49,333) (70,055)
Provision for impairment of goodwill

arising on consolidation (Note 7) (99,998) – – –
Provision for doubtful trade debts (Note 9) (49,180) (85,618) – –
Provision for impairment in value of
- club membership (Note 4) – (14,000) – –
- quoted investments (Note 4) – (41,000) – –
Provision for stock obsolescence (Note 8) (160,595) (72,269) – –

The number of Directors of the Company whose emoluments fall within the following remuneration bands are:

2003 2002

$250,000 to $499,999 – 1
Below $250,000 6 5

6 6
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23. Income tax

Major components of income tax expense for the years ended 30 June were:

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002

$ $ $ $

Current tax
- current year 36,600 (185,840) (685,000) (128,360)
- write back of provision due to

industrial building allowances claims 460,000 – – –
- overprovision in respect of prior years 535 16,668 535 –

497,135 (169,172) (684,465) (128,360)
Deferred income tax (Note (i))
- write back during the year 228,309 – – –
- underprovision in respect of prior years (384,234) – – –

341,210 (169,172) (684,465) (128,360)

A reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the Group and the Company’s effective tax rates applicable to (loss)/profit before income
tax for the years ended 30 June is as follows:

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002

% % % %

Statutory tax rate (22.0) 22.0 22.0 22.0
Tax effect on expenses not deductible for tax purposes 8.9 29.0 – 1.7
Write back of provision due to

industrial building allowances claims (20.5) – – –
Changes in tax rate – (10.2) – –
Deferred tax assets not recognised 1.2 – – –
Prior year unrecognised deferred tax liabilities 17.1 – – –
Others, net 0.1 (13.5) – 1.0

(15.2) 27.3 22.0 24.7
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23. Income tax (cont’d)

(i) Deferred income tax

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Balance at beginning of year 356,000 356,000
Write back during the year (228,309) –
Underprovision in respect of prior years 384,234 –

Balance at end of year 511,925 356,000

Deferred income tax arises as a result of:
Deferred income tax liabilities
- excess of net book value over tax written down value of fixed assets 570,256 356,000
- other deferred income tax assets (13,084) –
- ununtilised tax losses (45,247) –

511,925 356,000

Certain subsidiary companies had estimated unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances amounting to approximately
$490,000 and $723,000 (2002: $150,000 and $Nil) available for offset against future taxable profits, subject to agreement with
the Income Tax Authorities and compliance with the relevant provisions of the Singapore Income Tax Act. The potential
deferred tax asset arising from these unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances has not been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting policy in Note 2 to the financial statements.

24. (Loss)/earnings per share

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s net loss attributable to shareholders of $1,905,943
(2002: profit of $451,482) by the number of shares in issue during the financial year of 64,977,825 shares.  There were no share
options and warrants granted during the financial year.

25. Dividends

Group and Company
2003 2002

$ $

Final dividend paid in respect of the preceding financial
year of 0.3 cents (2001: 0.3 cents) per share less income tax at 22.0% (2001: 24.5%) 152,048 147,175

Interim dividend paid in respect of the current financial year of 0.3 cents
(2002: 0.3 cents) per share less income tax at 22.0% (2002: 22.0%) 152,048 152,048

304,096 299,223
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26. Forward foreign exchange contracts, non-cancellable lease and capital expenditure
commitments

(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts

As at 30 June 2003, the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts for the purchase of Euro dollars 1,241,759
(2002: Euro dollars 1,707,806) and US dollars 365,703 (2002: US dollars 850,547) in respect of hedging of firm purchase
commitments, which do not qualify for hedge accounting.

(b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

The Group has an operating lease agreement for its premises.  The operating leases do not provide for contingent rents.
Lease terms do not contain restrictions on the Group’s activities concerning dividends, additional debt or further leasing.

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Within 1 year 302,000 302,000
Between 1 and 5 years 1,210,000 1,210,000
After 5 years 5,445,000 5,747,000

6,957,000 7,259,000

(c) Capital expenditure commitment

Group
2003 2002

$ $

Contract entered into but not provided for 161,800 734,976

During the financial year ended 30 June 2002, a subsidiary company entered into an agreement to purchase a freehold
residential property, located at 27 Still Road South, #05-06, Singapore 423936.  The cost of the property is $1,224,960,
payable on a percentage of completion basis.  As at 30 June 2003, the Group made 10 payments, amounting to $1,063,160
(2002: $489,984) (Note 4) with the remaining amount treated as a non-cancellable capital commitment.

27. Financial instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.
The management reviews and agrees policies for managing these risks and they are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is limited to the risk arising from the inability of a debtor to make payments when due.  It is the Group’s policy to
provide credit terms to creditworthy customers.  These debts are continually monitored and therefore, the Group does not
expect to incur material credit losses.

The carrying amount of trade and other debtors, and cash and bank balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk.  No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single customer.

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2003
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27. Financial instruments (cont’d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has exposure to foreign exchange risk as a result of transactions denominated in foreign currencies, arising from
normal trading.  It is the Group’s policy to hedge these risks through forward foreign exchange contracts if material.

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s foreign currency exposure is insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate exposure relates primarily to certain bank term loans and bills payable to banks. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available.

Fair values

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is
practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and bank balances, other current assets and other current liabilities

The carrying amounts of these balances approximate fair values due to their short-term nature.

Trade debtors and trade creditors

The carrying amounts of trade debtors and trade creditors approximate fair values because these are subject to normal trade
credit terms.

Amount due from a subsidiary company

No disclosure of fair value is made for amount due from a subsidiary company, as it is not practicable to determine its fair value
with sufficient reliability since this balance has no fixed terms of repayment.

Long-term borrowings

The fair value of the long-term loans is based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues using current rates
available for debt with the same maturity profile. The fair value of non-current loans, borrowings or other payables with variable
interest rates approximates their carrying amounts.

Where it is practicable to estimate with sufficient reliability the fair values of financial assets and liabilities, these are indicated
below for each major class:

Group
2003

Carrying Estimated
amount fair value

$ $

Liability
Lease obligations 168,180 175,097
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28. Contingent liabilities, unsecured

(i) As at 30 June 2003, the Company has issued corporate guarantees of approximately $24,720,000 (2002:  $20,300,000) for
banking facilities granted to a subsidiary company of the Company.

(ii) As at 30 June 2003, the Company has issued corporate guarantees of approximately $420,000 (2002:  $420,000) for loans
granted under the Local Enterprise Financing Scheme to a subsidiary company of the Company.

(iii) As at 30 June 2003, a contractor has made a claim of approximately $1.3 million against a subsidiary company of the
Company for supply of ceramic tiles in year 2000.  Based on evidence and records, it appears that the issue is rather a case
of workmanship by the contractor.

Currently, the subsidiary company does not believe that the contractor has a credible claim and will vigorously defend itself.

No provision has been made in the financial statements as the Directors are of the view that the claim has no merit and
they are confident of the outcome of any legal proceedings.

29. Segment information

Business segments

The Group is organised into three main operating divisions, namely:
- Project segment
- Retail segment
- Interior design & renovation segment

The project and retail segments relate mainly to supply of ceramics tiles, marble and other finishing and building products;
processing, fabrication and precision cutting of building materials for project and retail based customers respectively.
The interior design and renovation segment is mainly engaged in the provision of interior design and renovation services to
homeowners and corporate clients.

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2003
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29. Segment information (cont’d)

Interior
design &

Project Retail  renovation Adjustments
segment segment segment & eliminations Group

$ $ $ $ $

2003

Turnover 16,812,398 4,922,448 374,636 – 22,109,482

Profit/(loss) before unallocated
expenses and income tax 1,397,328 (3,383,599) (135,472) (99,998) (2,221,741)

Unallocated expenses (25,412)
Income tax 341,210

Net loss for the year (1,905,943)

Assets 13,040,799 19,468,552 102,949 – 32,612,300
Unallocated assets 337,690

Total assets 32,949,990

Liabilities 9,801,280 9,781,717 177,502 – 19,760,499
Unallocated liabilities 680,105

Total liabilities 20,440,604

Other Segment information

Capital expenditure 75,609 145,036 316,045 – 536,690

Depreciation 376,343 578,107 42,970 – 997,420

Impairment loss – – – 99,998 99,998

2002

Turnover 24,773,137 6,049,904 – – 30,823,041

Profit/(loss) before unallocated
expenses and income tax 1,173,157 (509,977) – – 663,180

Unallocated expenses (42,526)
Income tax (169,172)

Net profit for the year 451,482

Assets 14,676,697 20,993,689 – – 35,670,386
Unallocated assets 40,160

Total assets 35,710.546

Liabilities 10,166,261 9,380,208 – – 19,546,469
Unallocated liabilities 1,444,652

Total liabilities 20,991,121

Other Segment information

Capital expenditure 531,890 855,878 – – 1,387,768

Depreciation 380,316 583,992 – – 964,308

There is no breakdown by geographical markets as the Group’s operations and customers are based in Singapore.
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30. Subsequent event

Subsequent to balance sheet date, a subsidiary company of the Company purchased an industrial premise at E-Centre@Redhill
for $1.34 million. This premise shall house one of its subsidiary companies.

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2003
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Authorised Share Capital : S$20,000,000
Issued & Fully Paid-up Capital : S$12,995,565
Class of Shares : Ordinary shares of S$0.20 each fully paid up
Voting Rights : On a show of hands : 1 vote

On a poll : 1 vote for each ordinary shares

SHAREHOLDING HELD IN HANDS OF PUBLIC
As at 9 October 2003, approximately 23.56% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company is held by the public and therefore, Rule
723 of the Listing Manual issued by SGX-ST is complied with.

No. of No. of
Range of Shareholdings Shareholders % Shares %

1,000 -10,000 489 75.00 1,212,000 1.87
10,001 -1,000,000 155 23.77 10,195,000 15.69
1,000,001 and above 8 1.23 53,570,825 82.44

652 100.00 64,977,825 100.00

TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS LIST AS AT 9 OCTOBER 2003

S/NO NAME No. of Shares %

1 NH INVESTMENTS PTE LTD 27,500,000 42.32
2 RICKY PAUL GOH MOH CHYE 13,432,690 20.67
3 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 3,000,000 4.62
4 TAY KIAM PENG 2,528,165 3.89
5 GOH CHENG MENG 2,391,160 3.68
6 TAY HUI HIA 1,688,905 2.60
7 TAY CHYE HENG STEPHEN 1,688,905 2.60
8 NG ENG SENG 1,341,000 2.06
9 CHAN SIANG LIM 303,000 0.47

10 MARTINA HO NGIET MEE 293,000 0.45
11 KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE LTD 278,000 0.43
12 JOSEPH HO SENG KAN 250,000 0.38
13 JEE WAI LIN JANETTE 232,000 0.36
14 CHUA SEOW LIM CINDY 230,000 0.35
15 CHONG BUAY HUA 230,000 0.35
16 NG WEE CHOONG 220,000 0.34
17 SONG YEONG YEONG 210,000 0.32
18 NG YAN HUAT 200,000 0.31
19 CHUA AH HOOI 200,000 0.31
20 TANG KOK ONN SIMON 191,000 0.29

56,407,825 86.81

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other shareholdings
Shareholdings beneficially in which the substantial

held by the shareholder is deemed
substantial shareholder to have an interest
No. of No. of

Substantial Shareholders shares % shares %

Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye 13,481,690 20.75 *27,500,000 42.32
NH Investments Pte Ltd 27,500,000 42.32  – –

* Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye is deemed interested in the shares (registered in the name of NH Investments Pte Ltd) by virtue of
Section 7 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50.

Statistics of Shareholdings
as at 9 October 2003
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 1 & 3 Tuas Avenue 8 Jurong
Industrial Estate Singapore 639217 on 24 November 2003 at 10.00 a.m. to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and consider the audited accounts for the year ended 30 June 2003 and the reports of the Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To approve Directors’ Fees of S$49,333.34 for the year ended 30 June 2003. [Year 2002: S$70,054.35].

3. To re-elect Mr Stephen Tay Chye Heng retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 94 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

4. To re-elect Mr Robbie Ooi Seng Soon retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 94 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

5. To re-appoint Ernst & Young as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without amendments as an ordinary resolution:-

6.1 Authority to Issue Shares

“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and the listing rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to allot and issue shares in the Company at any time
to such persons and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion
deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed 50 per cent
of the issued share capital of the Company, of which the aggregate number of shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders of the Company does not exceed 20 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company, and for the
purpose of this resolution, the issued share capital shall be the Company’s issued share capital at the time this resolution is
passed (after adjusting for any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of the Company’s shares), and unless revoked or varied
by the Company in general meeting, such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held,
whichever is the earlier.” [See Explanatory Notes]

7. To transact any other business which may properly be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

LOUIS PANG NGHEE THIAM
SECRETARY

Singapore,
7 November 2003

Notice of Annual General Meeting
NH CERAMICS LTD
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
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Proxies:
A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.  A proxy need not
be a member of the Company.

An instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at 1 & 3 Tuas Avenue 8 Jurong Industrial
Estate Singapore 639217 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

Notes:
The ordinary resolution set out in item 6.1 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of the above Meeting until the
date of the next Annual General Meeting, to issue shares in the Company.  The number of shares which the Directors may issue
under this Resolution would not exceed 50 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company. For issues of shares other than on
a pro rata basis to all shareholders, the aggregate number of shares to be issued shall not exceed 20 per cent of the total issued share
capital of the Company.
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I/We NRIC/Passport no.

of
being a member/members of NH Ceramics Ltd hereby appoint:

Name Address NRIC/ No. of Shares
Passport No.

and/or (delete as appropriate)

Name Address NRIC/ No. of Shares
Passport No.

as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held at 1 & 3 Tuas  Avenue 8 Jurong Industrial Estate Singapore 639217 on 24 November
2003 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be cast for or against the resolutions as set
out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting.  In the absence of specific directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain as he/
they may think fit, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.)

No. Resolutions For Against

1. Adoption of reports and accounts

2. Approval of Directors’ Fees

3. Re-election of Mr Stephen Tay Chye Heng retiring under Article 94

4. Re-election of Mr Robbie Ooi Seng Soon retiring under Article 94

5. Re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditors

6. Authority to issue shares

Dated this                               day of                               2003. Total Number of Shares Held

Signature(s) of Member(s) or Common Seal

IMPORTANT:
PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

NH CERAMICS LTD
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

PROXY FORM

IMPORTANT
1 For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy NH Ceramics

Ltd shares, this report is forwarded to them at the request of
their CPF Approved Nominees and is sent solely FOR
INFORMATION ONLY.

2 This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and shall be
ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or proposed to be
used by them.
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Notes
1 Please insert the total number of shares held by you.  If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register

(as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Cap. 50), you should insert that number.  If you have shares registered in your
name in the Register of Members of the Company, you should insert that number.  If you have shares entered against your name
in the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate
number.  If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by you.

2 A member entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend
and vote on his behalf.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3 The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at 1 & 3 Tuas Avenue 8
Jurong Industrial Estate Singapore 639217 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting.

4 Where a member appoints more than one proxy, he shall specify the number of shares to be represented by each proxy, failing
which, the appointment shall be deemed to be in the alternative.

5 The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in
writing.  Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed under its
common seal or under the hand of its attorney or by an officer on behalf of the corporation.

6 Where an instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney or other authority, the
power of attorney or authority or a notarially certified copy thereof must be lodged with the instrument of proxy, failing which
the instrument of proxy may be treated as invalid.

7 A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such person as it thinks
fit to act as its representative at the meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50.

8 The Company shall be entitled to reject an instrument of proxy which is incomplete, improperly completed, illegible or where
the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified on the instrument
of proxy.  In addition, in the case of shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject an instrument of proxy
if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as at 48
hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.
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Corporate Information BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye
(Executive Chairman and Managing Director)
Tay Kiam Peng
Stephen Tay Chye Heng
Margaret Tay Hui Hia
Wee Piew
Robbie Ooi Seng Soon

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Wee Piew (Chairman)
Robbie Ooi Seng Soon
Ricky Paul Goh Moh Chye

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Louis Pang Nghee Thiam
Chang Sow Kuen

REGISTERED OFFICE
Head Office
1 & 3 Tuas Avenue 8
Singapore 639217
Telephone : 6861 2626
Telefax : 6861 4023
Website : http://www.nhceramics.com.sg

INTERIOR DESIGN & RENOVATION
Living Elements Pte Ltd
3791 Jalan Bukit Merah
#01-10 E-Centre@Redhill
Singapore 159471
Telephone : 6222 1957
Telefax : 6327 1284
Website : http://www.mylivingelements.com

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
OCBC Centre
65 Chulia Street
Singapore 049513

RHB Bank Bhd
90 Cecil Street
Singapore 069531

United Overseas Bank Limited
1 Raffles Place
OUB Centre
Singapore 048616

SHARE REGISTRAR AND
SHARE TRANSFER OFFICE
M&C Services Private Limited
138 Robinson Road
#17-00 The Corporate Office
Singapore 068906

AUDITOR
Ernst &Young
10 Collyer Quay
#21-01 Ocean Building
Singapore 049315

Engagement Partner:
Max Loh Khum Whai
(Appointed since financial year ended 30 June 2002)



2003
NH CERAMICS
A n n u a l  R e p o r t
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Kembangan Showroom

5 Jalan Masjid

#01-09 Kembangan Court

Singapore 418924

Tel: 6223 5333

Fax: 6226 3641

Hougang Showroom

Blk 210 Hougang Street 21

#01-243 Singapore 530210

Tel: 6285 5333

Fax: 6289 4023

Tuas Showroom

3 Tuas Avenue 8

Singapore 639217

Tel: 6861 3444

Fax: 6861 1248


